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From: NEW DELHI

Sent: Thursday, 16 July 2015 10:50 p.m.

To: SEA

Cc: UNHC; ISED; NAD; AMER; WASHINGTON: LONDO®

FM.Immigration NZ (Seemail); FM.DPMC (FPA)
FM.P/S Trade; GENEVA; IDG GLO; IDG P G DSE; IDG SED? DG; NEW YORK:
NEW DELHIL, FM.P/S MFA; STR; FM.NABY(See ; NEW DE

Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lanka: A Political Revolution Stalls
Categories: Transferred to SharePoint

Formal Message: Sri Lanka: A Political Revolution Stall@ &
Summary L

Mahinda Rajapaksa’s defeat in January’s Presidentiat-ete s raised
on the cusp of major progress in such areas aernance and i

g his opponents that Sri Lanka was
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e, hold the/Sri people that while he will remain “neutral” in the

@l 6(a) B Sirisena, me
cky move Hy-Rdjapaksa to become Prime Minister after them. (D
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Parliamentary elections, he w &
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& 6(a) B Some major themes of the coming
campaign are already merging.apaksa ‘4@: a Presidential-style campaign, which focuses on his strong

leadership attributes lonalism fwith"agemphasis on his winning the country’s civil war and standing up to
Sri Lanka's “forei s”). UNP is %ﬂ a good governance platform, highlighting the anti-corruption
measures it has d over the past sixJnonths, as well as promising further devolution of power to the
provinces in a ¢ or the ephnic minority vote. Sri Lanka’s electoral system (which is a complicated form of
proportional repres lon) is desﬁi\s&ﬁ)feke single-party rule unlikely, so a mixed result {(with neither UNP nor
SLFP emer i lear majgrity) remiairs a very plausible outcome.—

Out of scope

on.
Report %
In January, SriAénké& und&went a political transformation when Mahinda Rajapaksa, once the country’s most
popular ever lea ecame its first incumbent President to be defeated at the ballot box. This was characterised as
a “revolutigh” thevbroad coalition of political forces who united to defeat Rajapaksa and replace him with
Maithripal isena, Rajapaksa’s erstwhile Health Minister.

\a was elected as Sri Lanka’s new President on a platform of good governance, national reconciliation

2 B.o
and I e cost of living. During the campaign, these themes expertly exploited the three primary concerns

that a narrew majority of Sri Lankans had about President Rajapaksa and his regime: that it was prone to corruption;
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that it had not “won the peace” following the civil war, thereby allowing inter-communal tensions to fester; and
it had not shared the benefits of Sri Lanka’s post-war economic dividend adequately with the middle and w,
classes. President Sirsena formed and led a self-described government of national unity featuring politicia
both of Sri Lanka’s two major political parties: the Sri Lanka Freedom Party (SLFP, hich Rajapaksa a irisena
are both members) and the United National Party (whose leader, Ranil mmghe, was|(appoin

Prime Minister by President Sirisena) .

3 Having governed for six months, President Sirisena has now diss

then pr blic with an

i Y %
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Parliamentary elections for 17 August. While these elections were not stitufiapally required to B i
2016, President Sirisena made clear during January’s election campai at he’would | ent Immediate
constitutional and economic reforms (il Out of scope i

opportunity to elect a fresh Parliament.
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10 UNP and the smaller political parties that united behind Sirisena’s Presidentia
to his decision to allow Rajapaksa to become an SLFP Parliamentary candida
supported Sirisena’s Presidential campaign have described this decision as a “
of the 6.2 million Sri Lankans who voted against Rajapaksa’s re-election to
same time, these political forces that united behind Sirisena to ensure
for the Parliamentary elections. Most of the political parties that suppofte
“united front” with the UNP, but are instead contesting the electio their own right.
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Comment

13 January’s elegtions, whi dsident-Rajapaksa defeated, brought about significant optimism among
the small majority of him a third term in office. President Sirisena, and his Cabinet led
by Prime Minister expectations among their supporters that significant reform would
cluding by characterising their victory as a “revolution”). The First

ident Sjrisena campaigned, promised voters progress on a basket of issues —
good govewmcal devolution/reconciliation, and cost of living.
t Sirisena
dt

Out of scope

Minister Wickremesinghe have had to endure a period of negative press
erstwhile cheerleaders in the media have started to produce more subdued

6(a) @

such areas as electoral reform and combatting corruption. This has helped give
government and President, unable to deliver decisive political leadership.

[

Out of scope






R ©(2)(2) /Z
From: NEW DELHI %

Sent: Saturday, 18 April 2015 12:43 a.m.

To: SEA

Cc: UNHC; ISED; NAD; AMER; WASHINGTON: LON BEINNG; OTTAW
POSTS; FM.NZTE (Seemail); FM.MPI (Seemaify; F tionNZ (See
FM.Immigration NZ (Seemail); FM.DPMC (P .P/S MFA (FM_PS3
@mfat.govt.nz); DS AAG; CEQ; DS MLG/FA.P/S e

Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lankan Politics: A&10 s Milestone Looi Mixed Verdict
for Sirisena

Formal Message: Sri Lanka: As 100 Days Milestone Looms, ixed Yerdict for %

Summary

Sri Lanka’s new President, Maithripala Sirisena, r ays this Saturday, 18 April. Sri
Lanka’s{ 6(a) ) political environment has constrai abilkwto fully deliver on its First 100 Days
platform, such as the abolition of the executi of Parliamentary elections. But the
Sirisena Administration has made very impre i social cohesion and repairing Sri Lanka’s
strained international relationships. Sri Lapkans ishi ce and security, and a reduction of the

son for strongly directional rule. (D

is still in the middle of a political transition and

the challenge of finding a ne Beijing and Western capitals. Both the timing of

Parliamentary elections and t

6(a)
Action % \
For informatio%
Report V

Sirisera was elgcte anka's new President on 9 January. He promised that his first 100 days in office
ion of the t;ly;g executive Presidency and general elections so that Sri Lankan voters could
governfrent, er of these goals will be achieved by 18 April, his 100™ day in office, bhut
= progressiacross offer parts of his policy programme continue to deliver Sirisena a degree of political

ff &
anthefectoral to]er%
2 In ity/ firsg three@ months in office, the Sirisena Administration has operated in a volatile political
isena

environment has constrained its ability to fully implement its election promises. Upon being elected

President, talled Ranil Wickremesinghe, the leader of the United National Party (UNP), as his
Prime Mi Q he UNP controls just 60 of Parliament’s 225 seats. The new Sri Lankan Government can therefore

le on with the cooperation of the majority Sri Lanka Freedom Party (SLFP), the political party of
ahinda Rajapaksa.
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W
n falterihg progress on the economic front, the Government could be expected to be struggling. But it

has othe ant priorities which it has handled much better. The Sirisena Administration has delivered on its
election_pro to improve social cohesion. Tamil Sri Lankans in the North and East of the country report high
levels

action with the President’s first 100 Days in office.

My
10 : policies the Government has implemented to achieve this success have included:

2



® Installing a civilizn governor of the Northern Province, replacing a discredited and disliked military leader.

* Lifting travel restrictions on foreigners travelling to the Northern Province, thus opening up oppo ities
for economic development and tourism.

® Reviewing the designation by the Rajapaksa regime of hundreds of di

individuals (R 6(a) B as having links to t

repealing them. (Comment: We are seeking further information on this
® Engaging with the international community, including the Office of th
Rights, on its domestic, post-civil war accountability and reconciliati

pY,
* Engaging more constructively with the UN Human Rights Counc;
members to give the new government “more time” in order ‘cor
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12 At the same time, Sirisena has to be cen s being made on him by Rajapaksa

ise his social cohesion policies and his
warming relations with the West as evidenc

state). He refused overtures by Tamil |
possible links to terrorism financing. He ha
Sri Lanka has a “non-aligned foreign policy”.
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don, claiming he was concerned at their
ons with the West, while still insisting that
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14 20 te ith an gvent — Maithripala Sirisena’s defeat of Mahinda Rajapaksa in the Presidential
election — which si d dramati iticafLhange in Sri Lanka. In the 100 days following that election, Sri Lanka’s
i G eri significant political transition. While achieving impressive results in the

Y@ pginternational relationships, the Sirisena Administration faces 3 challenging
{ch is constraining its ability to deliver on some of its other major pre-election
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From: NEW YORK
Sent: Tuesday, 17 March 2015 10:47 a.m.
To: UNHC; SEA
Cc: NEW DELHI; SINGAPORE; ..UNSC DIVISIONS; ..UNSC POSTS; ..WLN SLT; FM.DPMC
(SIG, FPA); FM.P/S MFA; FM.Defence (Seemail); FM.NAB (Seemail); FM.Police
(Seemail); GG ©(2)(a) DFAT
Cable Exchange; DFATD Cable Exchange
Subject: FORMAL MESSAGE: UNSC: FOR CABLE EXCH: BRIEFING ON SRI LANKA: 13 MARCH
Attachments: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Device.pdf
G A
Department of Political Affairs Briefing on Sri Lanka o Q/ @ \\'/\
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From: SEA
Sent: Tuesday, 17 February 2015 10:03 a.m,
To: SEA; TND; DS AAG; CEQ; ECO; DS TEG; EUR; A

FM.DPMC (FPA); FM.MPI (Seemail); FM.NZTE (
POSTS; ABU DHABI, AUCKLAND; BEIING;
LONDON; NEW YORK; OTTAWA; PARIS;
TEHRAN; FM.Sport NZ; FM.P/S Sport
(Seemail); ENV

Cc
Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lanka: Visit w Zealand by Mjaister urism and Sports
Categories: Out, Transferred to SharePoj
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SportNZ: (D 9(2)(a)
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Sri Lanka’s Minister of Tou
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rts, Navin‘. ake, visited New Zealand on 11-14 February to

Maithrip’ a.

represent his country’s ne
Cricket World Cup.

ena, at the opening ceremony and first match of the
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6(a) I This political visit, the first of
the Svbcontinent during the Cricket World Cup, underlined the value of the
Asjah diplomacy.

5l expected frgf
et to our Sa

6(a), 6(b)




sports development assistance (to Minister Coleman). 6(a), 6(b)

Report ( g 7

Sri Lanka's Minister of Tourism and Sports, Navin Dissanayake, visited
represent his country’s new President, Maithripala Sirisena, at the openi
Cricket World Cup. Minister Dissanayake's visit was the first to Ne
new government, which came to power on 9 January with Sirise
Rajapaksa.

ri Lanka's
Mahinda
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6(a),L6(b) Minister Cleman-dutlined the Key Government's
Better Public Services programme to make go elnment morg. innovative and results-focused. (D
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From: NEW DELHI

Sent: Friday, 13 February 2015 5:16 p.m.

To: SEA

Cc: AUS; CEQ; DS AAG; DS APE: DS IDG; DS TEG;

TND; UNHC; FM.DPMC (FPA); FM.MPI (See
(Seemail); FM.P/S MFA; FM.P/S Trade: F
CANBERRA; NEW YORK; GENEVA; ..AS
LONDON; BELING; NIUE; SRU; NEW BELRE
Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lanka: Smsena government's peace
Attachments: Sri LANKA FM Speech to Carne 2015.docx

Categories: Transferred to SharePoint z @
Summarv @ &

There is new purpose in the Sri Lanka political a

\ dse”, which spoke of determination to see
intercommunity tolerance and respect for all> iance attended the celebrations for the first

time in 50 years.

ill be an|e
reconciliation. We recommexd read| he sp
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An organised ¢
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Action

EEERETE  6(a)

Report

2 High Commissioner visited Sri Lanka from 1-6 February. The purg
new government of President Sirisena and to visit the post-conflict areg
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3 The main activities in Jaffna were a caI afd.extended brieﬂ overnor of the Northern Province,
6(a), 6(b) Dand a visit to

Jaffna
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6(a) ) Reports
claimed (and we believe) that 5000 plesparticipated in the ded march past. The parade was led by the
three services of the Sri Lanka milita

aramilitary commandos, and was rounded out by
groups of marching children, culturahs % ist, Muslim, Christian and Tamil communities,
dancers and musicians, bands,4rd for goed measuréy a fully-rdled baby elephant, which received a huge cheer from
the crowd. A loud and exten te heraldéd start of lengthy speeches, with the most significant of
many being given by Pres;j

Independence Day ceremony

8 The 67" Independence Day cere

9 There were two signifi

hat the highlighted the celebrations. For the first time in 50
years the leader of t

ional Alljan¢ ended the ceremony. Also, for the first time, the speech by the
President of Sri Lanka sed to ofﬁci% ed past tragedies and to communicate pu blicly a need for
national healing/ahd unity\President Sirisena ke of the need for “meditative reflection on past errors while
desisting from g btame on each other”. He also made a public commitment to work towards reconciliation
and to work to un minds of eople of all ethnic and religious communities.

6(b) )

B2 ‘paying of respect to all the citizens of Sri Lanka, of all ethnicities and
es duéxg the tragic conflict that afflicted the country for over three decades, and to all the
Indepgidence, and a commitment to ensure that never again will the country be allowed to
of blood of her citizens”.
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6(a),6(b)

e
L S . T ———— \ —
A A — .
S ————————— G T
T . e 2+ i
e e
e — o,
. —— e
-

o5 (O

T A R . S —— ",
ST — AT S—— Y,
S A
R —— i e e U
R . A — . E——
e e T
. e . S—
T T e " == ",
e W0 T
T TE—— Y e S——— . g
S ——— S

g — AR

‘
Comment

14 This was an

ith government in an upbeat mood following a strong
victory. Addressing reco
concentration on it is welcome

ntaMo the political and economic future of Sri Lanka and so the
commend reading the Foreign Ministers speech to Carnegie
as a full statement o% ment’s kt&
ENDS %
Addresshy Samara@hﬁster of Foreign Affairs at the Carnegie Endowment of International Peace

and agenda. It is copied below.
FebrW %
| ofo y gratef amm by the warm welcome and generous introduction accorded me this evening, It
t a

asure for ck once again in this beautiful and important city as Sri Lanka’s Foreign Minister
rly 8 yeargan osition benches in Parliament.

af

akjng on~Sri Lanka after the Presidential Election’, let me congratulate you Ambassador Burns on
the President of the Carnegie Endowment for International Peace soon after you relinquished
uishe eer at the forefront of United States diplomacy. I wish you many successful years of service
ship to this oldest international affairs think-tank in the United States. It is indeed an honour for me
ious presence here today.




The story that | have to tell you today is a happy one. A story that shows, that although Sri Lanka and this great
country are situated far away from each other, and our nations are unegqual in size, there is much that binds t
people of our two nations. Their commitment to democracy, freedom, liberty, good governance and the ru

and their dedication to uphold, protect and preserve the pluralistic nature of society/These are the valuegvhich t
people of Sri Lanka chose to reaffirm at the Presidential election held just over 33 s ago when they ugéd the
power of the ballot to elect Mr. Maithripala Sirisena as their President.

Despite an election campaign which was greatly flawed and one-sided, the rajn
scored a decisive victory on the 8th of January on a platform promising farxeach
oldest democracy reasserted its belief in and commitment to democrac
typical South Asian style — laid back and non-violent, Instead of the stoA€s,
Lanka's ‘Rainbow Revolution’ succeeded through the power of the ballot.

Over 81.52% of registered voters exercised their franchise on 8t flently, peé 3
resulting in a swift transfer of power the very next day. The firm re of the Army €o

of Police, and the Attorney General must also be commended/n the face of mov declarea state of emergency
and disrupt the counting in the early hours of 9th January.

The people of Sri Lanka, through this singular act, conv@ral powerfulmes :

-reaffirming their faith in the best traditions of de cy, showed h able a power elections can
prove to be;

o vote for a leader who promised them
ion, sustainable economic development
id of divisive politics and the preservation

1

peace, and most importantly, the creation iti e de

-they also sought through this elegf C toT thels ledders to abide by. Calling for an end to impunity

and corruption, people demanded th3tthe public officials are made accountable for their
actions and inactions.

Of course, to most who dj
long cherished democra
dropping moment,

SriLanka, and those who were sceptical about Sri Lanka’s
9th January came as a shock or what one would call a jaw

ts

inapplause {Lartka during the wee hours of the morning of the 9th of January.

is once again the re of the world’s attention for the right reasons. Although this
respongibility that the new Government must live up to, President Maithripala Sirisena,
Government are deeply conscious of this fact,

y’s history and its Parliament. Why do | say this? It is not because of the large

e all communities played an equally important role in electing this leader or the
took place. | say this because it is important to not lose sight of the fact that the

resident Sirisena to create a new political culture. As a result, we today have a very

n
e %
For the first time'iYour nation’s history, the two main political parties, the United National Party (UNP) and the
Sri Lanka Fggedom ty (SLFP) have reached consensus to move forward in unison for a common cause — that is

to work s achieving important national objectives in keeping with the aspirations of the people of our

3

lection, President Sirisena was appointed as Chairperson of the party that was earlier headed by the
dent, the Sri Lanka Freedom Party (SLFP). Although this phenomenon may have seemed strange to

5



observers of Sri Lankan affairs, this act made it possible for the President and the Government to secure the support
of the Sri Lanka Freedom party which has a majority in Parliament. Working together with so many different
partners is a new experience for us which requires the Government to chart its path carefully and mindfully, h
consensus building. It is nevertheless, a necessary path to tread to implement the i rtant 100 Day Wo
Programme or Reform Agenda of the Government which has been endorsed by th le, enact key legislation
required for this purpose and take important steps required to heal the wounds of atj

The support that the Government receives from the Leader of Opposition as w rties that hg
the Government such as the Tamil National Alliance and the Janatha Vimuk ramuna (JVP) are
success of the Government’s reform agenda and valued by the Govern t.

Based on this collective approach to Bovernance, Ladies and Gentlemen, for the-first time 's history, the
Government succeeded, at its 67th Independence Day Celebratio recognise past

tragedies and the need for healing and unity. Addressing the natj y 3 which the leader of the
Tamil National Alliance attended for the first time in 50 years,
reflection on past errors while desisting from heaping blam : : tment to work
towards reconciliation and unite the minds of the people of i

The Government’s ‘Declaration of Peace’ at the officia

-paying respects to all the citizens of Sri Lanka, of a icities and religio st their lives due to the tragic

conflict that afflicted the country for over three to all thgwictims &f violence since Independence, and
-a commitment to ensure that never again w cougtry be a@aumatsed by the shedding of blood of
her citizens.

Ladies and Gentlemen,

The Government made up of a co
that support the Government i
We are conscious that this op

N, | Iike to call the ‘rainbow coalition’ and the parties
e recognise fully the importance of this moment.

3 d and must instead be fully seized for the sake of the
0 ygach our nation’s fullest potential. Therefore, the
d work on implementing the 100 Day Programme on which

and the longest pending, is reconciliation. While meaningful
cess of healing, it is nevertheless an essential factor for the

ent, within days of assuming office, appointed two very senior
vernors in the former conflict affected Provinces of the North and the East with a view to
rengthen ian adninistration. These posts were previously held by military personnel.

eady ggmmenced discussions on introducing a policy of progressively reducing High
rovince and releasing land to the public.

-Steps b&n to remove any remaining restrictions on visiting places of worship in the Northern
Province ang r tructing all damaged places of religious worship.

-Restricti ced on persons visiting the North were lifted with immediate effect.

-Invofyéneqiyof the military in civilian activities has ceased.




-Resettlement related issues of the internally displaced are being addressed in consultation with the relevant
entities. All Sri Lankan refugees living overseas have been invited to return on a voluntary basis. The Gover nt
has already begun exploring possibilities of extending assistance to such returnees.

-Carrying out its pledge to ensure media freedom, all restrictions on media personpi€l intluding the pracfife of
referring visas for clearance to the Ministry of Defence were immediately discontinte

-All foreign media personnel who wish to visit Sri Lanka are now welcome to,do s, avel to an m any
part of the country, freely, without fear of intimidation.

-All news websites that were blocked were unblocked within a matter &

-An open invitation was extended to all media personnel living in o return to the

-Demonstrating its commitment to engage actively with civil sggi the human
human rights activists, the NGO Secretariat was shifted away #fom, the plrview o

placed under the Ministry of Policy planning and Economic A . Tégether with th
sonar r basi
&

purview this Secretariat now rests, | hope to engage with-these g

also have the relevant NGOs involved in the reconcilia @

-The Department of Immigration and Emigration w asalgo under the ew’of the Ministry of Defence was
shifted out and placed under the Ministry of Publi

-Independence has been restored to Govern instithitions. Mj once again given their due place in
policy making while public officials are respected the environ regdired for them to carry out their rightful

functions has been restored.

unity including

of Defence and

uty Minister under whose
o the extent possible and

-Work is already underway to repeatfhe cs i nameqthpent to the Constitution which removed
independent appointments to Co .@. i Grmhitits Of the Executive President. The Government will

re-introduce provisions of the 17th antend entwhich 3¢ the establishment of the Constitutional Council
that will provide for the estah nt ofvihdependént JuditialService, National Police, Public Service, Elections,
Bribery and Corruption, and iofal Hdman Right Cathmissions.

alise

-Necessary amendments nstitution tocalise the'transfer of executive powers exercised by the President to
the Prime Minister, the Cabinet &f Minister, Papliament are in the process of being drafted. The current
enation that he will not contest another Presidential election has

President who, upo s affirmed t

suggested that ngt on st the powers e Executive Presidency be curtailed but the term limit too must be

reduced.

Having discontinu practice 0 wi ndue importance to the post of President, he has shunned the use of
efer - Consistently emphasising the merits of abandoning ostentation,

terms suc ‘His Excellency’
Presidens Sir stead, en
on buifldingsa co assiona&

to servi u
ﬂi‘liT;f- the aﬁfie that the passage of the Assistance and Protection to Victims and Witnesses Bill will be
expedited, action | on this matter in Parliament this month.

Il of us adopt a pragmatic approach to governance, focusing all our energy
oral society where the rule of law and good governance practices are upheld and

-Introduction cfZ'm{hic ode of Conduct for all representatives of the people, the enactment of the Right to
Information,A%l\ the National Audit Act are also currently being worked on for implementation within 100 days.

-A Natioéé&utive Council inclusive of representatives of parties represented in Parliament has been set up

BE zutarly for consultations on the implementation of the 100 Day Programme and issues of national
es that are not a part of the Government such as the Tamil National Alliance (TNA) and the Janatha
una (JVP) are also represented in this National Executive Council.




-On 20th January, the Prime Minister gave an assurance in Parliament that the 13th amendment to the Constitution
will be implemented. This will be done while ensuring the sovereignty and territorial integrity of the State.

-Compliance with applicable legal provisions pertaining to the arrest and detention ersons will be enfefeed an
the possibilities of working with international partners, particularly the ICRC in pro¥idingaccess to detaifiées and.i
the establishment of a comprehensive database will be explored.

-A vote on account to provide certain relief measures to the public was presgate liament as p 29th
January and adopted by a majority of 163 votes on 7th February.

These details that | listed out are just a few of the Government’s achievem nd what it inten do. They are
important indicators that the Government headed by President Sirisena and Prirhe Minist singhe are

committed to delivering on their promises to the people.

l'am sure you are all eager to find out about issues of accountalility™
for several decades. What President Sirisena pledged under itém

ensure justice with regard to such matters through national i e

Government has only just completed 30 days in office, tj te

undergone detailed discussion signifying the importanég accordid to this isstfe th vital component of the
healing process of our nation. As you know, the Commtssion of Lessons Léarnt-and Reconciliation too, in addressing

issues of accountability, identified a series of incideﬁﬁ\uhic N/ arrant furt%\r\%@ﬂgation and if the material so

warrants, the institution of prosecutions. @
Accordingly, steps will be taken in the comin@eeks egin the{t‘:?roees_‘ f setting up necessary mechanisms to

investigate into incidents, and where suffigient e}ia‘ance is availab\k‘}em&:r%t criminal prosecution in such cases. We
will engage with the international commu%&}iﬁtb*{ﬁprocess)@dinm United Nations and the Office of the High
Commissioner for Human Rights. ~

Additionally, discussions will com onth with officials from South Africa to institute a
truth-seeking mechanism suita ¢ il function in parallel to the accountability

mechanism. Unlike the Sout i sion, it wilhot's he purpose of amnesty but to facilitate the healing
and reconciliation process o cti

The Government will als ays and me 0 harness the potential of the Sri Lankan diaspora to contribute
to local reconciliation and develdgment ef

Ladies and Gentlzmen; :é \

It is evident fr cgdntry’s history dating back to thousands of years that the people of Sri Lanka have always
been outward loo as welco

tinual absorption of influences from the outside world, and has
ores. This is evident in the multi-layered make-up of our population, its
ure, food and attire. It is also evident from recorded history that Sri Lanka
maritime history of the pre-colonial and ancient world and that the Kings of our
to the courts of their contemporaries including Augustus Caesar’s Rome.
or Ashoka of India and his contemporary in Sri Lanka led to the introduction of
a civilizational impact on our country. There are many written accounts by
anka including by a pilot in Alexander’s fleet and Chinese Pilgrim Scholar Fa Hsien.

ndence in 1948, Sri Lanka carried forth its engagement with the world and took pride in the
icy based on “friendship towards all and enmity towards none”. Considering the country’s
ion mid-way between east and west, its historic role of engagement with the world, and an

T >
c =
w D
e % o
= o :
o 9
=hiy

=3
ov_
24
() =
=

educated.an ly literate population, it was natural for Sri Lanka to pursue this policy.
Sri Lg @ 5 modest pride in the fact that it was in Colombo, in April 1954 that the Prime Ministers of India,
Myanmmar Tidonesia, Pakistan and Sri Lanka, then Ceylon met and decided to convene the Bandung Conference or
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the Asia-Africa Conference in 1955. Sri Lanka was also among the first 25 countries that witnessed the birth of the
Non-Aligned Movement and was host to the organisation’s Summit in 1976. Having joined the United Nation
1955, Sri Lanka has contributed consistently to the United Nations system in numerous capacities, taking a gad
norm setting processes including the Law of the Sea Conference, disarmament and h@iman rights and con
this day to contribute to peacekeeping operations.

It was therefore uncharacteristic for Sri Lanka to have shifted away from this tr eign polj
years in what is best described as an aberration, Sri Lanka now seeks to renew its ment with
community. Just before my departure to London on Saturday evening, | si tter inviting the UNdigh
Commissioner for Human Rights to visit Sri Lanka.

—+will also invite
t the moon, we
to happen, it would

| look forward to inviting the Secretary of State when | meet him tomorrow, to Wit Sri La
the UN Secretary General Mr. Ban Ki-moon to visit Sri Lanka whentm@et him on Friday
would also like to see the President of the United States of Amer. mmv. ri Lanka.

d

be the first visit by an American President since Sri Lanka achi

Having stressed the importance of discontinuing the previou

ent’s ady¥prs olicies in international
relations throughout his election campaign, President Sipisemadi t forget ive duerécognition to Sri Lanka’s
relations with the world community even in his brief r oowing his oath ta ceremony on the evening of
9th January. In his address to the nation soon thereafter.s
4th February, the President stressed that it is essen

i Anuary a is.cemarks on Independence Day on
0 maidtain cordial uitful international relations. The
i hips integnationaly that recognises and respects our
individuality as a nation. It remains our policy to d friendship to g

aim of the Government, he said is to build the w;

The Government of President Sirisena an rime ister Wickrem {therefore, pursue a policy of renewed
engagement with the international commu We Jook at t n opportunity and not as a threat, We will
embrace the world so as to get the best the wortd’ean offer erment of the Sri Lankan people. Ours will be
a pragmatic foreign policy not base idegology but on the ne f our people.

In implementing its 100 Day Progra ag promised, @t to renew its engagement with the world, the
Government requires the supB’dft,,narMhip and/Ghdér\g\fa-r/%g_ofthe international community. It is our fervent
hope in this regard that the Unite@/st s will be & ivgPin our effort to revive Sri Lanka’s relations with the western
hemisphere and as expre ssistant Secr of State during her visit to Sri Lanka recently, that “Sri Lanka
can count on the United e a partner friedd in the way forward, whether it is on rebuilding the

i vernance, ensuring human rights and democratic

participation for all

I would like to te in
that was publi t

context frommx article written by the moderator of this event Mr. Fredric Grare
arnegie portal this month. In this post-election analysis he suggests and | quote:

“To help rol copruption and.promo conciliation, it may be time to consider relieving some of the pressures
on Sri Lanka iggd'by the Un 2ty and Europe. Gradually unfreezing development aid and giving Sri Lanka
enhaptéd trade Bénefits upder t SP+ trade agreements if Sri Lanka works toward achieving genuine

n

Mose words. Our plea today is exactly this. This audience is aware of how, in 1948, America
e

helped restart opean economy with the Marshall Plan, a recovery plan that in time restored Europe’s
economic wel .Itis our hope that America will partner us through a similar endeavour to help us realise the
kind of ecofiémijc opment required to meet the aspirations of our people.

Sincm orial, Sri Lanka’s natural assets and geographical location in the Indian Ocean made Sri Lanka a

trangi¥an tination point for sea-faring nations. Our present-day interactions with the international com munity,
inclugliag the Wnited States must factor in Sri Lanka’s location as a hub in the Indian Ocean. In this context, what we
wish pursue our relations with the United States to be as comprehensive as possible encompassing a

9



multitude of areas of cooperation. There are several areas of common interest for both countries including the
promotion of international peace and security, ensuring maritime security, and combating terrorism and religi
extremism. Our two countries are bound by our commitment to pursue and protect democracy and huma
freedom. Throughout its history, the people of Sri Lanka, just like in the United Stat , have struggled tofetain
their sense of independence. %

In this context, historically, the governments and people of the United States h ways.been helg~a-high EEard
by the people of Sri Lanka. The American people and their governments har lonial desi the
people of Sri Lanka. And they did not stand in the way of our own drive fopin

by Sri Lanka in its fight against terrorism. While America remains Sri Lan large

promote trade and investment both ways to make our economic and tkaderels
balanced, benefiting the people of both countries.

ustomer wish t

My first official visit to the United States and meeting with Secre fate Kerry to
our efforts to renew and re-engage with the United States for the
fact, | would like to assume that the people of the oldest modér

arguably the oldest modern democracy in Asia, Sri Lanka, ex 0 ; &

I' would like to leave with you some thoughts on ho
Sri Lanka at this unique moment of its history.

ill'be a first step in
of both countries. In

First, I invite all of you to visit us. Join this exd moment of ou

d carry our story out to the world.

Second, help Sri Lanka through increasing%‘s‘a investm co
new investment opportunities that have open?d‘(p inSril

situation of the country. Increased

e your entrepreneurs to capitalise on the
ation is key in alleviating the economic
d investment oppo ities are important factors that will assist the
anka’s sustainable growth, peace and development.

Third, | urge the international £émmunitw/ncludin ITap/rights community to be patient. This is a time of
fragile transition. The Govern of 8pl Lanka i tted to the success of this journey of strengthening
democracy, good govern rule of | nsuring the promotion and protection of human rights of all
her citizens.

But remember, this sitive procesNavolving the participation of a multitude of political parties that are
essential to ensure th cess of this jo Thefe are still some extremist elements within and outside the
country who, fof Obyiouspeasons, want this | ey derailed. Therefore, | urge you to allow us time and space while
supporting us joufhey of national reconciliation and healing, institution building and regaining the true Sri

Lankan identity.

m’co those mme able to derive something meaningful from it: to those who would gain

\m’, especi%who may be in what might seem like irreversible states of despair — with either
n

or civil sgri ions which we believed not so long ago that we would have been destined to
d in ouhcbuntry. Tell our story to those who may have lost faith in democracy and the
e ballot. They musy/fot lose heart.

http:/ ww.memmkwex.php/en/media/media-reIeases/5864-foreign-m|‘nister—samaraweera~speaks—at~
ca rnegie—endqﬁ@m-fﬁ%ternational-peace-in-washington
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Extract from Briefing - Visit by Hon Minister of Tourism and Sport of Sri Lanka
Navin Dissanayake to New Zealand, 10-15 February 2015

Bilateral Meeting Brief: Minister for Sport and Recreation
Meeting details

* Meeting with Sri Lanka Minister for Sport and Touris avin Dissanaya Diss-gha-
yaka).
» Location: George Hotel, Christchurch

* When: 5.30pm, Thursday 12 February
Attendees %’ @

Hon Dr Jonathan Coleman, Minister of Health ort.and Recregtion

The Honourable Minister Navin Dissanayake - Ministéy o ism and Sports
Dr Lanka Dissanayake - Wife of Minister
High Commission for Sri Lanka, Canberra

His Excellency Admiral Thisara Samarasi h Comrgissianer
Aruna Abeygoonesekera - Honorary C | I Lanka v
Sir Paul Collins = Chair Sport NZ

Peter Miskimmin - Chief Executive

r Zealand High Commission,

New Delhi

Talking Points

Introduction

*  On behalf of t w Z&aland e ent I wish to welcome you to New Zealand
and to convegd my ratulation our appointment as Minister for Tourism and
Sport. We die leased to 0s you so soon after the Presidential elections.

Please also op/my con S to your President on his election success.
g i

VAN

Out of scope

Out of scope



Lanka. Iwould be 3 in about how the new Sri Lankan

Government is app hese |s Iudlng in the context of its actions in

the Northern Provyi

« [ understand t re int in public sector and electoral reform. I am
interested tg/ hear e abo eas of reform you are interested to identify
areas of poténti operation eenKMew Zealand and Sri Lanka.
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Background
Sri Lanka Political update

2
D D 0 Y &N 60 D &

L Lta ]
G G(2) B It is very {dng p . promatind feconciliation
between Sri Lanka’s various éthnic and religfe iti I ing via a gradual
demilitarisation of the North); combating co 3

order to root out corruption,

(6(a) MNew Zealand has sup
reconc;hatlon and polltical dev

4 In March 2014 Nationd Rights Council (HRC) voted to open an
international mqmr into ged wa committed by both the Sri Lankan
Government and the{ly E rlng the VI war:~The Council also reiterated its call on the
Government to i pI e recomtierdations in the Lessons Learnt and Reconciliation

Commission. (i G CEEED ¢ ‘ D D D @ @

k a Sri Lankan government spokesperson has indicated the
lan g to launch its own investigation under an independent judiciary
m the Commonwaalth) into the final stages of the civil war -

ena promised in the lead up to the elections. R aa Rt s )

6(a)
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» New Zealand keen to see progress in the process of potifical recdnetfietienin Sri
Lanka. Iwould be interested in your views—akout how the ne i Lankan
Government is approaching these issues - in in_the contg {ts™actions in

the Northern Province.
ﬁtural diplomacy

Political, human rights, security is and spo

Key Points

« In January, Sri Lanka held .a

e (ipala Sirise
B ) D & G @

( N \ " 6(a)
We are suppOrtiVe) of Sri LanRat~efforts aimed at enhancing reconciliation. We
believe a transpgarent refomeiiatiod process will help to allay concerns (D

6(a) B A lack of trust (D

6(a)” ) will hamper devolution, as well as Sri Lanka's
e forward with aneffective accountability process.

an Rights Council session in March, the Office of the High
ights (OHCHR) Investigation Report on Sri Lanka is
ed Nt is not clear what recommendations will come out of this

6(a)

how the new Sirisena-led government will interact with the

noy

Out of scope BWe encourage the
in Sri Lanka to effectively implement the useful recommendations
w.the Lessons Learnt and Reconciliation Commission, including those not
tne National Plan of Action.

Out of scope




CEEATTEREE _ 9(2)() U/Z
From: NEW DELHI \

Sent: Wednesday, 28 January 2015 4:38 a.m.
To: SEA
Cc AUS; CEQ; DS AAG; DS APE; DS IDG; DS TEG; E G GYO; IDG P,

TND; UNHC; FM.DPMC (FPA); FM.MPI (Seemail);
(Seemail); FM.P/S MFA; FM.P/S Trade

) ]
; FNEP/ d Safety; FM.P/S Aghdulture;
CANBERRA; NEW YORK; GENEVA; .. A POSTSYFM.VCO mail); ;
LONDON; BEUING; NIUE; SRU
Subject: Formal Message: Sri Lanka: New Government Makes Bus
Attachments: Sri Lanka - Hindu.docx i: 2 i
Formal Message: Sri Lanka: New Govern es Bu@t
Summary

e Now into its third week, Sri La
an early emphasis on stamping

T — . —— e, . ~E—_—

6(a), 6(h)

- e
New Zealand I opporttm in the coming period to engage at the political
level with th overnme OM is undertaking a series of Ministerial calls in

Colombo next™wee irtster of Sports and Tourism will represent President
Sirisena of the Cricket World Cup in Christchurch on 14

February. \
Action
o SEA - To,consider two r letters of congratulation to Sri Lankan Ministers.
° E note H to Sri Lanka next week, and provide instructions (if any) on
megsages.
° AMNDI - To ge)further with Sri Lanka in Canberra and Colombo regarding visit
orts a ou Minister Dissanyaka for opening game of Cricket World Cup.

the countr itical system, has made a busy start. President Sirisena, working closely with
his Pri Ranil Wickramasinghe, has so far emphasised three priority areas:
Sri Lankan system so as to reduce corruption and devolve back to Parliament
U powers that accumulated under his predecessor, Mahinda Rajapaksa;
ter concerns about the cost of living, especially as it pertains to basic
lgs; and enhancing inter-communal relations, by demilitarising the North and East

Sri Lanka’s mnment, which is now into the third week of its 100 Day Plan to reform
Min
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Political manadge@ment and reconciliation: a balancing act
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7 The Sirisena Administration has taken some lmpo L early steps toqu political
reconciliation and devolution. R s

R e ——

kan Government withbe ( NN

: ) flying Heads of
and Trincomalee
attend these

SRRERRNE  6(a)

Mission to former Tamil Tiger strongholds Jaffna $n orthern Pte
(in the East) as part of Independence ele rations

celebrations.
The international dimension and New Zea!a |nt

8 The above domestic prlorrtles h\ﬁ/ternatl enSionS. e e

new government has:

WNext week, the Srj
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R/ 6(2), 8(B) O
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)6(b)
¢ Made clear that !:: ishto hav '

constructive relationship with Sri Lanka’s

critics in the intern al com nity, espemally in Europe and North America, who
charged the Rajap regl e ' R |gnor1ng political devolution and reconmllatlon
The govern preparmg 6(a) B response to the report of the

vestigative~bedy>Jet up by last year's Human Rights Council

international

resolutio
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10 HOM will be spending next week in Sri Lanka, first to take part in Independen Day
commemorations in Jaffna, Trincomalee and Colombo, and then to undertake calls /4 Rey

Ministers identified above and in our Formal Message of 14 January i
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From: NEW DELHI s
Sent: Saturday, 10 January 2015 12:10 a.m.
To: SEA
Cc: APD; AUS; CEQ; DS AAG; DS APE; DS IDG; DS ML TEG; ECO; 1 G
PHM; IDG SED; ISED; LGL; NAD; EUR; AMERSTF NHC; FM.Deferge
w3il); FM.Immigration
NZTE (Seemail); FM.P/S MFA;

FM.P/S Trade; FM.P/S Food Safety; FM P/S lture; BE ELS;
CANBERRA; LONDON; NEW YORK,_GENEVA; OTTAWA: W GTON; TOKYO;

. ASEAN POSTS
Sri Lanka @ es A Dramatic

Subject: Formal Message: With Rajapaksa
sADra itical Transformation
Summary

Political Transformation
®* Mahinda Rajapaksa became the first Preside I e at the ballot box today, suffering a
narrow but clear defeat at the hands of hi hripala Sirisena.
* Power has transferred between th nd Sirisena is due to be sworn in at an
inauguration ceremony in Colombo toni

Formal Message: With Rajapaksa Defeated, Sri La

RS\ 6(a))

T A e ——— T S
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*  The interngd
Rajapaksa’s
how itight app

= 6(a)
8l copv? unity, including SriTanka’s most trenchant critics, has praised the electoral process and

geptance gijs defeat. Its focus is now turning to the new government’s priorities, including
dach issues of re¢ontiiation and devolution at home and in Geneva.
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6(a)

Action

6(a)
Repo

Defeat, then a swift transfer of power




—G(a)DSri Lanka underwent a dramatic political transformation (9

January), with voters rejecting an incumbent President at the ballot box for the first time in the count his

Mahinda Rajapaksa, who in December called a Presidentizl election two years befofe his second ter as due to
expire, was narrowly but clearly beaten. The President received the votes
percent), less than the 6.22 million (51.3 percent) who voted for his major o
Maithripala Sirisena.

2 For President Rajapaksa, the political end came swiftly and he hafle ith considerable diggiy. Around
4.30am this morning, before the final election results had even been ced, the Presideqizxmet Leader of the
Opposition Ranil Wickremesinghe to negotiate the terms of a transfer wer.

6(a), 6(b)

R

ilbe swor as S Lanka’s 7

th

3 Sirisena’s team moved quickly to claim power/af President tonight in

an inauguration ceremony at Independence Hall in Célbsn il attend.FHis ceremony will further clear
the way for Sirisena to name and swear in his Cabingt ove .
Where did Rajapaksa lose? A minority backlashé%\" fednt Sinha!é%%

4 By any standard, Rajapaksa’s defeat r sents a rema rsal of fortune for a politician who only
i dited with ending Sri Lanka’s civil war, and
masterminding a post-war economic recover ed in January 2010 with almost 58 percent of

the vote. In yesterday’s election, he WS'dl support compared with 2010’s election. While no
credible exit polls were conducteg

6(a) (Christian and Hindu)
Tamils and Muslims mal{e up.arg Sri Lankan electorate, and they voted in record numbers
yesterday to oust the Preé i i 's victory margin has been generated from the Northern and
Eastern Provinces — i rolled by the Tamil Tigers, and whose residents feel they have been
let down without ge i r political devolution. Even though only 1.3 million of yesterday’s
12 million votes irisena attracted more than three-quarters of the vote there and so

e the Opposition’s advantage in the North and East, as he had done in

icant vote erosion in his Sinhalese base. While still winning southern polling

own of Hambantota, the President suffered significant swings towards Sirisena.

el ral feat Sirisena was able to achieve yesterday: he appealed both to Sri Lanka’s

ican tion of Rajapaksa’s Sinhalese base. As an evolutionary rather than revolutionary

strong/Buddhist credentials, it is apparent that Sirisena has been able to win a large minority
bréfided as a minority representative.

peaceful election and transition

al process, including the polling day and its immediate aftermath, was fundamentally
n-related violence was infrequent and minor. Sri Lanka’s domestic election monitors, electoral
authorities, law enforcement agencies are united in describing it as one of the most peaceful elections in Sri
his outcome belied pre-election concerns, expressed by some in the international community, that
3 regime might foment violence in Opposition areas in order to suppress turnout. We had seen no first-
e to support this contention during the campaign (our FM of 6 January refers) and the peaceful
atmosphere continued right through election day. In fact, turnout surged, especially in the Tamil-majority areas in

2



the North and East (Jaffna, for example, doubled its 2010 vote). The election overall has had the highest turnfut in
Sri Lanka’s history: 82 percent.
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uggesting that its
orship” might

sly and impartially,
tely favouring the

9 In the end, Sri Lanka has experienced a remarkably swift and | transfer of po
democratic institutions are significantly more robust than some critics of Rajapaksa’s “cr
allow. The country’s Elections Commissioner, Mahinda Deshapriya,earried out his duties
including challenging the state media (including on election day, u a felt it wa pri

President.

The new line-up: a diverse coalition pushing for constitutior@@g
S/
SN

6(a), 6(b)

o

10

6(a)

11

6( Dne-of the major planks of Sirisena’s campaign was
hereby devolving .- powers hack to Parliament and to the Prime

i uch~amendments require a two-thirds Parliamentary
majority.

12 Sirisena’s first gov
signalled, as part of his gped g
Executive than did Presit l‘!.l paksa, who fad m

" SR Jr e B,

ertaken this weekend, is to form a Cabinet. He has already
ruption drive, that he wishes to have a significantly smaller

han 100 Ministers. (N

T e T

NV NN
‘ ~/
The Sirisenad -" inistratiirst : public test will be its handling of a visit next week to Sri Lanka by Pope

6(a)

13
Francis.

T S — ™ — N/

lso log \

L implgryent an economic agenda, which has yet to be sketched in significant detail, that
-. o-deliver on Si
ectidp of the country

ena’s promise to share the dividends of Sri Lanka’s economic growth with a greater cross-
eshaimed at reducing the costs of basic commadities, including milk powder. (D

Out of scope

tion. This economic agenda will feature anti-corruption measures, as well as steps

\ ut of scope

The @nal community: reactions and reconciliation




15 Sri Lanka’s significant democratic transition has been acknowledged, even by some of its more tre
critics in the international community. US Secretary of State John Kerry was the first major international |

release a statement on the electoral outcome — praising both the democratic process, and Rajapaksa’s
of the result.

6(a), 6(b)

Comment: Protecting and ad oﬁé New Zealand%be,res S

5N i
19
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23 We should not underestimate the scope of the politicél han: hat Sri Lank have unleashed. The
t fo ci
i or the

Rajapaksa family has been in power for a decade. It has do its ates in political and official
roles, who will now be leaving government en masse. | w Sirisena Administration
with its many elements to bed in and settle down.




